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QUESTIONS - ANSWERS - CLARIFICATIONS 
 

CITY OF STOCKTON BICYCLE MASTER PLAN UPDATE 
FEDERAL PROJECT NO.:  ATPLNI-5008(141) 

PROJECT NO.:  PW1436 
 
 

Please Note:  The submittal deadline for the Request for Proposal 
(RFP) for the City of Stockton Bicycle Master Plan Update has been 
extended.  Please refer to the City’s website Bid Flash page for the 
revised RFP, dated April 24, 2015. 

 
 
1. Please advise if there is any possibility of an extension on the deadline for 

submissions. 
Answer:  Please see revised Request For Proposal (RFP), dated April 24, 2015, 
posted to the City’s website Bid Flash page. 

 
2. Because you want the selected consultant to demonstrate their ability to provide 

high quality graphics, can we submit sample work, perhaps on a separate CD?  
 Answer:  You may submit additional graphics in an Appendix and it will not be 

counted as part of the 25 page limit. 
 
3. Because there is no DBE goal for this contract can we assume that the Good 

Faith Efforts are also not required? 
 Answer:  Correct, Good Faith Efforts are not required. 
 
4. Since there is no DBE requirement, can we exclude Exhibit 10-O1 “Consultant 

Proposal DBE Commitment”? 
 Answer:  There is no DBE requirement. However Exhibit 10-O1 and 10-O2 are 

Caltrans required forms.  Forms 10-O1 and 10-O2 are required to be submitted 
as the City must submit the forms to Caltrans. 

 
5. Can you clarify which forms in Exhibit F need to be returned with the proposal?  
 Answer:  Please return the Actual Cost-Plus-Fixed Fee section of Exhibit 10-H 

“Sample Cost Proposal”. 
  
6. Do subconsultants need to complete all the required forms as well? 
 Answer:  Please refer to Exhibit E “Federal Aid Consultant Contract Provisions” 

and Caltrans Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM). 
 
7. Does the 25 page limit include resumes and forms? 
 Answer:  No, the 25 page limit does not include resumes and forms. 
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8. Do you have preference for the public engagement approach? 
 Answer:  There is no preference for the public engagement approach.  However, 

please refer to “Task 3: Public Engagement Process”, for specific requirements. 
 
 a. Methods we should be sure to use? 
  Answer:  There are no specific methods to be used. 
 
 b. Methods to avoid based on previous experiences in Stockton? 
  Answer:  There are no specific methods known to be avoided. 
 
9. Regarding graphic samples, could we us one 11” x 17” page in the proposal to 

demonstrate our graphic work?  If so, would that count as 1 page? 
Answer:  Yes, an 11” x 17” page in the proposal would count as one (1) page. 

 
10. In the Project Team section no resumes are requested; could we include 

resumes in an Appendix and have that not be included in the page count? 
 Answer:  Yes, resumes may be included in an Appendix and they will not be 

counted at part of the 25 double-sided page limit. 
 
11. On the section called “Key Personnel References and Flow Chart” can you clarify 

what the flow chart for this section is? 
 Answer:  The words “and Flow Chart” have been removed from the revised RFP.  

Please refer to the revised RFP, dated April 24, 2015. 
 
12. For the project matrix, Form 10-1 is mentioned but Exhibit 10-H is used as a 

sample, should we use Exhibit 10-H as the cost form? 
 Answer:  For the cost form use Actual Cost-Plus-Fixed Fee section of Exhibit 10-

H, “Sample Cost Proposal”. 
 
13. Can you confirm that this contract requires FAR audited rates? 
 Answer:  Yes, this contract requires Federal Acquisition Regulations (FAR) 

audited rates. 
 
14. The indemnity clause in Section 11 of “Exhibit B - Instructions to Proposers” is 

different from the indemnity clause in Section 11 of “Exhibit C - Sample 
Professional Services Contract.” Can you please clarify which indemnity clause 
will be applicable for this project? 
Answer:  Indemnity clause in Section 11 of Exhibit B “Instructions to Proposers” 
will be applicable for this project. 

 
15. I am having a hard time finding Exhibit 15-H DBE Information and 15-G Local 

Agency Bidder DBE Commitment. 
Answer:  For Exhibit 15-H “DBE Information-Good Faith Efforts” refer to Exhibit E 
“Federal-Aid Consultant Contract Provisions”.  Exhibit 15-G “Local Agency Bidder 
DBE Commitment” is for construction contracts. 
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16. We are a non-profit organization that has been asked to team with a consulting 

firm on a proposal for the Bicycle Master Plan.  As a non-profit (we are not an 
architecture or engineering firm), are we required to have FAR audited rates?  
Answer:  For non-profit organizations the City will accept the annual audit using 
A-122 cost principles. 

 
17. Can you clarify if the team needs to include a registered traffic or a civil engineer 

registered in California for this project? 
 Answer:  The Consultant shall recommend a team that is appropriate for the 

project scope.  A team with a registered Professional Engineer or Traffic 
Engineer must be licensed in California. 

 
18. Are subconsultants that are non-profit firms, and small businesses subject to the 

$2M insurance requirement? 
Answer:  Yes, please refer to Exhibit B, “Insurance Requirements for 
Professional Services”, page 3 of 3, Subcontractors. 

 
 
19. If we have a subconsultant that is a non-profit or small business and does not 

have FAR audited rates, can you confirm that we should submit Attachment 1 of 
DLA-OB 13-07 - Safe Harbor Indirect Cost Rate in lieu of Exhibit 10-K?  
Answer:  Consulting (A/E) firms providing engineering and design related 
services under a contract funded by a federal grant are required by regulation (as 
specified in 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) 18.22(b)) to account for and 
bill costs in accordance with the Federal Cost Principles of 48 CFR 31. To 
comply with the Federal Cost Principles, A/E consulting firms that provide 
services on federal-aid highway projects are required to develop indirect cost 
rates in accordance with the Federal Cost Principles on an annual basis. 

 
Developing indirect cost rates annually can place a significant burden on some 
A/E consulting firms and may create a barrier for otherwise eligible and qualified 
firms to compete for federally funded contracts.  For example, small firms, 
including many Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) firms, may lack the 
financial sophistication to develop an indirect cost rate, or lack the resources to 
hire a Certified Public Accountant to conduct an audit and to provide assurance 
as to the development of an indirect cost rate compliant with federal 
requirements. Additionally, new or start-up firms generally do not have a 
contract-related cost history to use as a base for development of an indirect cost 
rate.  Other A/E consulting firms, although established, may not have previous 
experience with federally funded contracts for which an indirect cost rate would 
have been developed in compliance with the Federal Cost Principles. 

 
To help alleviate the burdens and remove the potential barriers, the Federal 
Highway Administration (FHWA) has developed a national indirect cost rate, the 
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“Safe Harbor” indirect cost rate (SHR), for use by eligible consultant firms on a 
test-evaluation basis.  The testing period is from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2016.  

  
Only A/E consulting firms that satisfy the criteria below have the option of using 
the SHR on contracts executed within the established test period. 

 Firms that do not have relevant contract cost history to use 
as a base for developing its own indirect cost rate. 

OR 

 Firms that do NOT have a previously accepted ICR by a 
cognizant agency, or with an audited/accepted actual ICR 
within the established test period. 

AND 
1. All firms are required to have a project/cost accounting 

system adequate to accumulate and track direct labor 
and other direct costs by contract, segregating indirect 
costs, and removing unallowable costs.  These basic 
accounting system functions are essential for accurate 
billing of costs under federal cost-reimbursement 
contracts. 

2. For eligible A/E consulting firms that use the SHR and do not 
have established salaries or wage rates for employees or 
classes of employees, the fixed hourly labor rates will need 
to be established for calculation of the direct labor portion of 
the contracted services.  The agreed upon rate shall be 
reasonable as set forth in the Federal Cost Principles, 
considering the nature of the services to be provided.  
Where appropriate for the scope of services under contract, 
a “fully loaded” hourly rate could be established utilizing a 
reasonable hourly direct labor rate, the SHR as the 
overhead rate component, and an appropriate amount of fee 
(profit). 

3. SHR is permitted for Home Office rate only, and not for Field 
Office rate.  Should a firm opting for the SHR be selected to 
provide services for a field-based contract, a field-based 
indirect cost rate may be negotiated, where appropriate, to 
ensure an equitable distribution of costs to the benefiting 
contract in accordance with FHWA guidance and as 
permitted within the Federal Cost Principles. 

4. SHR is not adjustable for the term of the consultant contract. 
5. No retroactive adjustment to indirect costs will be allowed for 

past contracts utilizing the SHR. 
Other Considerations 

6. The expectation will be for the firm to establish a cost history 
for the eventual development of an indirect cost rate for the 
firm in accordance with the Federal Cost Principles based 
on the actual costs of the firm. 
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7. The SHR may be used in the determination of the fixed fee 
portion of the contract, which would not be subject to 
adjustment unless warranted by changes to the scope of 
work or duration of the contract. 

  
A/E consultant firms (prime and/or sub-consultants) electing to use SHR in a 
contract are required to submit a completed SHR Consultant Certification of 
Eligibility and Contract Cost and Financial Management System (Attachment 1), 
and a SHR Questionnaire for Evaluating Consultant Financial Management 
System (Attachment 2).  This requirement is in addition to the A/E Consultant 
Audit and Review Process requirement described in Local Assistance 
Procedures Manual, Chapter 10, Section 10.3. 

 
20. In Exhibit E: “Consultant’s Endorsement on Plans, Specification and 

Estimates/Other Data The responsible Consultant/Engineer shall sign all plans, 
specifications, estimates (PS&E) and engineering data furnished by him/her, and 
where appropriate, indicate his/her California registration number”; because this 
is a planning effort and no engineer is required for the team, can we overlook this 
statement?  

 Answer:  No, the statement in Exhibit E “Federal-Aid Consultant Contract 
Provisions” cannot be overlooked. 

  
21. Should Exhibit K “Consultant Certification of Contract costs and Financial 

Management System” be submitted with the separate cost information since it 
includes rate and cost information? 
Answer:  Submit Exhibit 10-K in a separate sealed envelope with cost proposal.  
Refer to Section 6.8, “Project Work Matrix of the Request for Proposal” for 
additional information. 

 
22. Exhibit 12-H Debarment and Suspension Certificate listed in Exhibit E is actually 

a Sample Bid on the Caltrans website; can you clarify where to find the Exhibit 
for Debarment and Suspension? 
Answer:  Initial and submit Exhibit 12-H “Debarment and Suspension 
Certification” provided in Exhibit E “Federal-Aid Consultant Contract Provisions.   

   
23. Can you clarify if Exhibit 17-F “Final Report – Utilization DBE”, First Tier is 

required upon completion of the project or is it to be submitted with the proposal?  
 Answer:  Exhibit 17-F “Final Report – Utilization of Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprises (DBE)” is to be submitted upon completion of the project. 
 
  
 


